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CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(gavel) . .. We shall bring this Budget and Finance Committee
hearing to order. First of all, West Maui, Lahaina people, thank you very much
for being patient. I'm sure all of you know there was a very bad accident on the
way in to the Civic Center this evening, so all of us are a little late. So we
apologize, and we thank you for your patience. And we appreciate you waiting to
provide us your testimony on the Fiscal Year 2005 Budget for the County of
Maui.
ITEM NO.1:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C. 03-265)

CHAIR HOKAMA: This evening, I'm, what I've done this year is to allow the district
member to do the introductions as well as to bring you forward to provide your
testimony. So at this time, I'd like to introduce the Member from West Maui, Ms.
Jo Anne Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aloha, and thank you all for being so patient. I really
appreciate all the Members, too, that are here this evening because they are
really going to every place. They've been Molokai. We've been to Kula, and
now this is our meeting here in Lahaina.
So without further ado, I'm going to introduce the Members. I'll begin with
Charmaine Tavares from Upcountry, Mr. Danny Mateo from the island of
Molokai, Mr. Bob Carroll and he is from the Hana area. Our Chair of the Council,
Dane Kane and he is from the Wailuku area. I almost said Kahului, that's Joe
Pontanilla. Sorry. And, of course from Lanai, we have our Budget Chair, Mr. Riki
Hokama. We have Mr. Joe Pontanilla, and he is the Member from the Kahului
area. From our Paia area, we have Council member Michael Molina, and for our
staff this evening, we have Shannon Alueta and also Ms. Clarita Balala. So they
do all the hard work. I also saw earlier ... oh, and I do see Mr. Jeff Anderson of
Parks and also Mr. Glenn Correa from Parks. He is our Parks Director and Jeff
runs the West Maui Center. And also in the back I see Mr. Joe Pluta and
Ezekiela Kalua from West Maui Taxpayers. So thank you all for coming.
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Without further ado, I would just give you a couple ground rules. I ask if you
have any cell phones or pagers, to please, just please turn them to the silent
mode so they don't interrupt the testimony. We're going to give you three
minutes for your testimony this year. I will be calling up the first name and then
I'll give the second person who is going to be testifying afterwards. So if you
want to, you can just come up and be prepared to testify. But, anyway, the first
person to testify this evening is Mr. Stuart Kahan, and he'll be followed by May
Fujiwara. So, Stuart. We clap for everything in Lahaina .
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. KAHAN: Aloha, and thank you very much for coming and persisting through our
traffic situations. I won't even dwell on that. I think you've had enough
experience with that to see what those needs are. But I would like to say that we
here on the West Side want you to know how important your support of MEO and
its various contributions to our senior community are, as well as your
congratulations to you for persisting for our Senior Center, which is now really
close to completion. And I'm sure most of the people here have gone by it at
least to take a look, a quick look at it. And the third thing that I want to ask about
and commend you for is your continued support of the Community Work Day
Program because that Program is what keeps our community unburied under
trash and other stuffs. So I continue, ask you for your continued support for
these three items. The MEO, the Senior Center and the Community Work Day
Program. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are there any questions of Stuart? Seeing none,
thank you very much. And also if you would be kind enough to state your name
for the record, too. That was Mr. Stuart Kahan. May Fujiwara, and she will be
followed by June Kaaihue.
MS. FUJIWARA: Budget Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget Committee, aloha
and welcome to Lahaina .. ,. (inaudible) ... put it on yourself, Ollie. I don't need
one. Beatrice, give another one to Riki Hokama because he's the Chair, Budget
Chair. Thank you.
My name is May Fujiwara. I'm one of the many Lahaina seniors here tonight,
and I would like to ask our seniors to stand . . . . (applause) ... And we have
come to say, thank you for our beautiful West Maui Senior Center, which is near
completion and which we hope to occupy in the very near future. We will now
have a home of our own and will no longer be displaced when special events
occur at the Lahaina Civic Center. This Center will enable our West Maui seniors
to participate in the many educational, cultural, and recreational programs that
are now offered only at the Kaunoa Senior Center.
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We ask you to fund several positions to properly operate the West Maui Center
and provide services to the West Maui area. We ask you to fund positions for a
Program Center Coordinator, a Program Assistant, a Clerk Typist, a Park
Caretaker, a Meals on Wheels Aide and Assisted Transportation Aide and
Leisure Instructors.
We commend you for your actions last year in continuing to recognize the value
of the investment in the services provided by MEO to seniors, youth, those in
need of housing, Head Start, Microenterprise, and to the growing Hispanic
community. We hope that you will continue to recognize their value and will
support these programs in your upcoming budget.
The non-profit organizations and the legions of volunteers are partners with the
County in doing so much that would cost a great deal more if left solely to the
government alone. These non-profits contribute greatly to our quality of life in
Maui County, our economic well-being and provide vital services to us.
We would also like to ask you for additional funding to add one more day to the
congregate lunch program. This enables our seniors to be able to socialize more
with their peers, enjoy a well-balanced lunch, and to gain valuable information on
a variety of topics from speakers who share their expertise with us. On topics
such as breast cancer for men and women, diabetes, home safety, theft
prevention and most recently on what not to do if we are ever handcuffed and
arrested. And this did happen to one of our seniors.
Please support MEO's request for additional community transportation. As you
know, many of our seniors rely on the MEO buses to take them to the dialysis
treatments, their radiation treatments, to take them shopping, to attend meetings
and to go on excursions and to keep their doctors' apPOintments.
Thank you for listening, and, again, we wish to say thank you for the diligent work
you do and for the many long hours you spend at Council hearings for the benefit
of all MauL Please know that we appreciate all of you. Mahala.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, May. Are there any questions of May?
Seeing none, the next testifier will be June Kaaihue, and she'll be followed by
Haruku [sic], Haruko Nakata.
MS. KAAIHUE: Aloha. My name is June Kaaihue. I live in Honokohau Valley, about a
half-an hour ride from here to there, and, as you know, the traffic is horrendous
sometimes.
And, anyway, put that side ... mahalo for your Lahaina, for our Lahaina Senior
Center. I appreciate all of the thoughts that you had regarding this matter.
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We encourage you to support Mayor Arakawa's budget because it's very
sensitive towards MEO request. The MEO provides necessary transportation, of
course you know, services to the low-income, elderly, children and youth,
persons with disabilities, and medically-needed, needy residents in Maui County.
MEO is the provider of specialized, non-emergency transportation service to
Maui County residents.
This additional, the, in response to the on-going community assessment, MEO is
requesting funding for much-needed additional community transportation. This
additional community transportation will add service to take care of seniors in
Hale Mahaolu Eono and those who will be using the Lahaina Senior Center, the
low-income residents of Na Hale 0 Wainee, add a route to Kihei for day care and
day health clients. It will also extend shopping hours for Lahaina, Molokai,
Central and Upcountry to better accommodate shopping and medical
appointments.
Additional transportation is also needed for our growing youth population. West
Maui, Upcountry, and Molokai need additional bus runs to accommodate afterschool children going to Boys and Girls Club, the youth centers and other
supervised activities.
Thank you very much for your support, again, for MEO transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, June. Are there any questions for June?
Seeing none, Haruko.
MS. NAKATA: Good evening, Councilmen. Thank you for coming. I would like to
thank all the Councilmen for all the things you did for Lahaina seniors, and we do
need more buses pretty soon because they're all getting old. Can't drive, have to
go shopping, have to go to the doctor, and all activities, which have to have our
transportation, otherwise we'd be stuck at home. Get rotten at home. And pretty
soon all you Councilmen going be a senior, too. So if you can think about it to
help all the seniors.
And now another thing, the road over in Napili way, it's terrible. The other day I
was going to Napili, I saw a women fall on the street, and I think if you keep on
falling down, the Council might get a suit, you know, some of these days. And
there's no sidewalk and the road has lot of holes. Now, especially worse now
with the rain. But it's really ... and there's about, oh, about, 50 to 100 people
walking in the morning, down way. And it's really dangerous, so if you can make
a note of it, of the road.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The lower road?
MS. NAKATA: Lower road. Okay, thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Haruko. Haruko, is it the road, when you
go down Napilihau Street, is it the road to the right or the road to the left?
MS. NAKATA: The down road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know but because-MS. NAKATA: Oh, going, the holes? Going to the left.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Going to the left. Okay, because when you go to
Kapalua, it's bad there, too, right? Okay. Alright, thank you. Following Haruko,
we have Solomon Pali, and he'll be followed by Florence Hasegawa.
MR. PAll: Aloha and good evening. My name is Solomon Pali. I am a member of
Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens Club. First of all, I want to thank you for our
West Maui Senior Center and for all the good work that you do for us all. We will
need people to run our new West Maui Senior Center. So please fund positions
will be necessary to do that.
Please continue to fund MEO transportation, which is so important to our seniors
since many of us can no longer drive. Because of MEO transportation, I am able
to live more independently. The MEO bus takes me shopping in Lahaina and on
the other side. I am also thankful for the MEO buses because I am now able to
attend our Club excursions to Hana and Ulupalakua and all the, and also to visit
and entertain the residents of Hale Makua, Wailuku and Kahului. And also at
Kula Hospital.
I enjoy attending the lunch program twice a week there at the Civic Center. It
gives me a chance to get out, out the house and talk story with my friends. I also
enjoy the speakers that come to talk to us. If possible, please add another day to
our lunch program. I thank you, again, for your hard work and for listening to me.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Sol. And thank you, May. Are there any
questions for Sol? Seeing none, our next testifier is Ms. Florence Hasegawa,
and she'll be followed by Peggy Robertson. It's your turn, Florence. Come on
up.
MS. HASEGAWA: I can speak from here.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no, you gotta ... because you gotta, you gotta
speak in the microphone.
MS. HASEGAWA: I don't have anything to say.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: First time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, it's easier if you come. .. She's independent.
MS. HASEGAWA: I wasn't thinking of saying anything. Haruko I think made me come.
Good evening, everybody. A" I have to say ... you see, I'm hard of hearing. I
can't hear what everybody is saying, but I can, you can hear me. A" I have to
say is to thank you, Council Members, for our Senior Citizen, our Senior Center
in Lahaina. I understand that it's almost completed. I thought I won't be able to
see, but I might still be alive. Thank you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER
JOHNSON:
Thank
you,
Florence.
That
was
Ms. Florence Hasegawa, and she'" be followed by Peggy Robertson, who wi" be
followed by . . .
MS. HASEGAWA: When you wanted to talk about it ... how many years ago?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's right.
MS. HASEGAWA: I was 93. May I be 96.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, happy birthday.
MS. HASEGAWA: I might be lucky enough to see the new center.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
plaque for you.

We", we hope so.

We'" have to make a special

MS. ROBERTSON: Ninety-six?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ninety-six.
MS. ROBERTSON: Ninety-six, there you are.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And following Peggy wi" be Sue Kamalo.
MS.

ROBERTSON:
Okay.
My name is Peggy Robertson .
wait ... (short pause) ... Ninety-six. Salute her. Salute that woman.

.

.

1'"

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We hang loose in Lahaina, right.
MS. ROBERTSON: Oh, she's great. I think 96, she deserves applause. Anyway, my
name is Peggy Robertson, I live in Wahikuli, right next door. And I'd like to speak
about three things. Our Lahaina DMV Satellite Station, right here at the Civic
Center, the seawall, and Wahikuli Beach Park.
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Today, I went to renew my license and found out the funding for the staff is only
one year at a time, so I hope they make sure it is funded for next year because
the staff were excellent. They were polite. They were charming. One was a,
she was a retired school teacher and she handled it just like a school teacher.
Hello, welcome, can I help you. I mean she was perfect with every single
person, so I hope you renew the budget on that.
But I also want to ask you to return our vehicle road testing back to West Maui.
I've heard all the reasons why they took it out. I don't think it makes sense
because we had some testers that weren't doing very well here. They want to
keep their eye on them. So that's one of the reasons why they took 'em over
there, and I think that that is just inexcusable to take our testing out. Today a
new person walked in and he was, she was, he was told to fill out all the forms,
bring in all the required documents and take the written test and then drive to
Kahului. You should have seen the shock on his face. He was like, what? And
she said, well, you have to drive to Kahului to take the test. I mean all the other
stuff, he brought and he'd done. Well, then he had to get someone to drive him
there and someone has to take off work from West Maui to drive someone there.
The high school students, they have to take time out of the school, but the
parents here have to take time out of their working day and usually they don't
pass the first time. So you have to go a second time and maybe even a third
time. And I think it's inexcusable for the amount of taxes we pay here in West
Maui that we do not get our license testing back. Please applaud if you agree
with me ... , (applause) ... Okay, thank you.
Now, the next thing is the seawall on Front Street. It needs repairing. It's too
late to walk the wall today, but if you get a chance, if you're over here again, that
seawall is in bad shape. There's, all the concrete is starting to ... it kind of has
rock underneath with concrete over the top, and it's, because of all the storm and
stuff, it hasn't really been repaired in two years. And there are parts down by the
Methodist Church in that area where the rocks are actually falling down, and I'll
tell you, if you don't budget some money for it now and repair it ... if you repair it
now, you'll save yourself a lot of money. And you know that if we don't, if Front
Street wall goes, we lose the road and then we lose the town. So that should be
one of your big budget items. At least check it out. Send some people over
there to look at it.
The last thing is my little Wahikuli Beach Park. As you know, Wahikuli is one of
our oldest residential areas in this area, and it's been two years now and they've
had bulldozing problems and they had to do this and that. I really think that they
could have probably hired about three or four people from the Salvation Army
and they could have done it in one day. But they are waiting for some bulldozer
problem and there is supposed to be money. And I haven't seen it yet. I went
there today. We still got the big pile of dirt that's been there for, I don't know, six
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months or whatever. And there's just rocks and thorns and the stairs need to be
worked on, and I want to make sure that we have some money allocated. I know
we have money allocated, and we're getting new people. I read that part of it in
the newspaper or whatever. And I'm glad to see that's happening, but I'm just
saying that I hope that Wahikuli Beach Park gets a facelift real soon.
Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. Are there any questions for Peggy?
Peggy, we will try to get the answers for you. Mr. Anderson, effective ... he's
over in the corner. If you want to check with him about some of the park items,
and I think the only thing with the seawall is we might need an environmental
assessment or something. Or a SMA permit, depending on probably the
expense for it because it's in that SMA area. So we'll check on those things,
though. Thank you, Peggy. Next is Sue Kamalo and she's going to be followed
by Anja Shields.
MS. KAMALO: Hi, my name is Sue Kamalo, and I'm the Deputy Director for Light
Bringers. We're a non-profit organization that brings food, clothes and other
things to the working poor, our senior citizens, immigrants and homeless.
I'd like to invite you folks all to come and see our new facility. We moved to
283 Wili Ko Place. We're open Monday through Friday and we have a little
boutique that people come in and shop for nothing. And they could get clothes to
go interview for jobs and look very nice.
The main reason why I'm here is because I really want to let you folks know how
much I support our Department of Housing and Human Concerns. They fund
part of our project. The Department of Housing and Human Concerns offers a lot
of support to our agency, as well as other agencies. They've helped us
strengthen our Board. They work directly with me, just like I'm the only person
that exists when I go in there, and I really appreciate that. They've taught me
how to be accountable and how to make sure that my program is the best it can
be.
And because of the support that I've gotten from Housing and Human Concerns,
I'm confident to be able to look for funding elsewhere and know that I've got a
reputable agency that I could be proud of to present. On top of all of that, they
put up some really useful training for us, too. So I just really want you folks to be
aware of how hard they work for us agencies, and we're able to go out and
provide those services to our needy because of the support that they give us.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Sue. Are there any questions
for Sue? Seeing none, Anja Shields and she'll be followed by Alison Way.
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MS. SHIELDS: Anja Shields. I'm here for the Food Bank. The Food Bank sent me
down here in the past. I have participated in buying stuff for our needy people.
Lately there is not really much that we can purchase because of the out-of-date
stuff that are not allowed for our group homes, that I know that money has to be
made available for those that have paid jobs in there. There's not always enough
volunteers. We also need more food because we have an increase of people
that participate at the Food Bank, and I know that I speak for the senior citizens
here that are on a fixed income. And wait month-to-month for the food mobile to
come to either the Methodist grounds or to the Maria Lanakila grounds where
they give out packages. So please keep the Food Bank in mind. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Anja. Is there any questions for Anja?
Seeing none, our next testifier is Ms. Alison Way, and I see you brought several
people. So I'll let you introduce the rest of the testifiers.
MS. WAY: Good evening, everybody. My name is Alison Way, and I am the Unit
Director here at the Boys and Girls Club in Lahaina. I just brought my three stars
with me today, so they'll tell you more, a little about our programs. And I'd love to
come here to just kind of share some updates with you.
Currently, we are at a membership of 300 kids, serving about 52 on average a
day. And we're still working really hard on our Power Hours and our Smart
Moves and our sports and getting the kids recognized for their hard work.
Recently, we were just in the Cannery Mall--hopefully some, maybe Jo Anne saw
it maybe--of their hard artwork they just did. We're working hard to get our teens
involved. That seems to be one of the biggest problems, so we're working
harder on the career launch programs, helping the kids get into different job sites
to meet people, to see what it's really like and to see if that's really their interest
or not. And we'll actually be having a teen expo over in Kahului, coming up in
April. And I would really like to thank our MEO for getting the kids to and from
our school and getting them home at nights. And also our Parks Department.
They helped us with maintaining around the building. They do a great job on
that. And they help us hold our, we're doing quarterly dances here in the social
hall now to try to get the kids, you know, one night, at least one night a month out
here to meet with us. It's going to be a lot of fun.
A couple concerns, talking with Colin. Unfortunately he couldn't be here. He's
working hard on the budget also. So he said one of the concerns is that the RFP
process that's going on now, it's actually seeming to come a little short than what
we had last fiscal year. So we're struggling to even keep level. So we're actually
asking to have funds at least matching from last fiscal year. And we would like to
thank you on your generosity of the start of, hopefully, a new site soon for a
building for the kids here in Lahaina, and we can't wait to see this new senior
center. The kids are all talking here.
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We still do adopt a grandparent at least once a month with the adult day care
center on Front Street, so we're ready to see this new building, too. We're going
to go up and help. We're really proud to say we have one kid that just made
Youth of the Year and it's a National program that the Boys and Girls Club does
that recognizes each kid. And we're actually doing a big, other islands. Oahu is
coming over, and that's also April 2, which is Friday. So I'd like to introduce you
to my stars. Next to me is Maxine, Melody and Melissa, and they'll be talking in
that order. Thank you very much, and thank you for your continued support.
And we do appreciate it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, and it's Maxine Caprioni.
MS. CAPRIONI: Caprioni.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Caprioni. Oh, thank you for correcting auntie.
MS. CAPRIONI: Well, hi. And you guys are asking me why, why do I go to the Boys
and Girls Club. Well, I hate to be cheesy, but if I named every reason I went to
the Boys and Girls Club, we could seriously be here for a long time. To save you
and me the time, I've narrowed it down to just a few.
One of the things I really love about the Club is the staff. Unlike a lot of adults,
no offense, they treat you as an equal--with respect and love. They treat you
with the same type of attitude as if you, if you were their own.
For example, homework. They will gladly help you with your homework any day
of the week. Whether it be English, social studies or even math.
To be truly honest, the reason why I first came to Boys and Girls Club was to
hang out with my friends. But once I got there, I realized that it was so much
more than that. Even though the Club is an excellent outlet for your social life, it
is also a way to pursue the things that you love most in life. Like the Club's
drama program or art, or the art program. The programs also teach you valuable
lessons like the Program Smart Moves, which is a class to learn about drug use
and an honest source to learn what you need to know.
You ask me why I go to the Club, but my question to you is, why wouldn't you?
My name is Maxine Caprioni. I've been going to the Boys and Girls Club for
three years, and I am proud to say that I am a member of the West Maui Boys
and Girls Club, the positive place for kids.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Maxine.
Night. And Melody Bash next.
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MS. BASH: Okay. Good evening, my name is Melody Bash, and I attend the West
Maui Boys and Girls Club. I have been a member for almost five years. I love
coming to the Boys and Girls Club because ... wait. I love coming to the Boys
and Girls Club for all kinds of reasons. Tonight I am here to tell you some of
those reasons.
Fitness Authority is a program where we do push-ups, sit-ups and many different
types of exercises. The reason why I like to do Fitness Authority is because it
makes me feel better about all the junk food I eat sometimes because I know my
body is being cleaned out. This also makes me feel stronger, and I feel like I can
do more things in my life. This is also good to do during your time of growth.
The next program I want to tell you about is drama. This is a very cool and
awesome class to do. The reason why I do it is because, because I love acting,
and I love being in front of the camera. My friends and sister are always in
drama, so it is awesome because you get to see how they are and how they act
behind the camera.
The next program is Games with Alison Day, or known as Ali Day. This is a day
where we play games with Alison and she teaches us a new game to play and
most of the time it is a very fun and educational game. In addition, we get to play
with our peers and our staff. Our most recent game we learned how to play was
Animal, and that was a very fun card game.
I participate in Girls' Group, which helps girls work on creativity and talents. The
next one is called Project Success. This is where we learn how to work in
different jobs, like restaurants, bookstores, and Wal-Mart and many other places.
This afternoon we were supposed to go to the Humane Society, but it was
cancelled due to bad weather and flooding. This is a very fun program for me,
personally, because I get to learn how to do all sorts of different kinds of things.
And next year, when I turn 14, I hope I can get a permit and start working.
Next is cooking class. This is a class, this class is good for me because when I
grow up I want to be a professional chef and maybe own my own restaurant.
This is a high goal of mine.
The next program is art. The reason why I like to do this is because I get to let
my creativity out and get to express my individuality. Express my individuality. I
also do a lot of community service at the Boys and Girls Club. For one, I
partiCipate in Adopt-a-Grandparent. Adopt-a-Grandparent is where we help our
grandparents do activities. It makes me perform for them and sometimes give
them snacks. I especially like this program because it makes me feel happy
when I see other people being happy.

- 12-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 24, 2004 (Lahaina)

I participate in community clean-ups and fundraisers, like our car wash and our
annual charity walk. The first year, I won the grand prize, a boom box at our
Club because I raised $365. Every year I participate in charity walk to help out
our Club. Because all of my hard work and help I also got to go, I also got to go
with other Club members to Oahu and that was a blast.
Two more accomplimish [sic}, two more accomplishments I have made at the
Boys and Girls Club was I graduated from the Smart Moves Program and Goals
for Girls.
Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Melody, and Melissa Moss is next
MS. MOSS: Hello, my name is Melissa Moss. I am a member of the West Maui Boys
and Girls Club. If I didn't go to the West Maui Boys and Girls Club, I don't think I
would be the funny, caring, outgoing, nice and giving person I am today.
I live in Wailuku, and my mom worked in Lahaina since I was in the second
grade. My mom transferred me over to Princess Nahienaena in the fourth grade,
and I thought it would ruin my life. But when I came to the Boys and Girls Club, I
didn't want to leave. Everyone was so friendly. Our Club has the best programs
ever, and the staff was really nice, too.
My favorite programs are Girls Group because it is fun. We get to make clothes,
and we will be doing a fashion show soon. Another program I really enjoy is
cooking. My favorite recipes so far are Chicken Fried Chicken and egg rolls,
which I even make for myself at home.
I also get to do Fitness Authority, which helps me stay physically fit. At the Club I
also get to be creative and try, and tried out for the talent show doing the hula
and singing. Last February I also won the first place for the fine arts show for my
age.
Please keep helping our Club. Thank you and have a good night.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Melissa. Are there any questions?
Seeing none, thank you very much, and is Jonathan Starr not here.
MS. SHIELDS: ... (speaking from the audience) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Anja, if you could just ask them because this is just
their testimony in front of us so-MS. SHIELDS: ... (speaking from the audience) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know, but what, they, you need to do is you just need
to just ask them privately.
MS. SHIELDS: .,. (speaking from the audience) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so Jonathan is stuck in traffic, so we'll skip
Jonathan Starr for now and Stacey Moniz will be the next testifier, and she'll be
followed by Victor Bellarosa.
MS. MONIZ: Hi, my name is Stacey Moniz. I'm the Executive Director of Women
Helping Women, and, again, I'm following Boys and Girls Club. A hard act to
follow.
I did, I wanted to thank you all for sticking with me, being patient with my, you
I'm trying to do something
know, repetitive showing up in front of you.
interesting, and one of these days I'll actually have something ready to pass out.
Today I'm, again, kind of winging it.
I thought I would let you know about the funding sources that Women Helping
Women has had over the years. I think it's interesting to know we started as a
hotline in 1977, and it was pretty much volunteers on the hotline. And then in
1981, we moved into a shelter, and in 1982, we moved into the building we are in
today with five staff members. And it was very grassroots, very limited funding
sources, small funding base. And probably they had no benefits or anything.
You know, it was just kind of a small group of women.
And then in the 1980s, the Family Violence Prevention Services Act in Congress
created money to make sure that there were shelters in every community. And
so the State of Hawaii gets money every year to make sure we fund shelters
throughout the State. So we get money from them. It's passed through through
the Department of Human Services. And then in 1996, again, Congress passed
a Violence Against Women Act, and we get money from them through the
Attorney General's Office at the State of Hawaii.
We also get United Way money, combined Federal Campaign money. I applied
for a lot of grants with private trusts and foundations in the State of Hawaii.
Atherton, Baldwin, Cooke, ... (inaudible) ... , Mcinerny, Wilcox. I apply every
year. And we do the charity walk as well, and we get private contributions. We
do a membership drive, and we've been doing an annual event fund raiser, an
elegant afternoon tea for the past seven years.
Last year, we added a second annual event because we need to raise more
money, and so we now do a silent auction at Mother's Day at the Brunch at the
Maui Prince Hotel.
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So we have two big fund raisers in May coming up, and the charity walk, and I
just kind of wanted to let you know that we really do work hard to raise money,
that you certainly are not the only place we come looking for money.
In fact, oh, I wanted to mention Lanai again. During the Aloha Week festival, my
one staff member and my one Board member on the island of Lanai recruited
some teenage girls and they did, like, foot massages for a donation. They
washed people's feet and massaged their feet. They raised $600, all in one day
on Lanai, and it wasn't like the rich homeowners, as they are called. It was all
the local people that wanted to get their feet rubbed. And while they were
talking, my staff and my Board member were educating about domestic violence
and the services available on Lanai. So I just wanted to share that that's an
innovative fundraising thing. Now we've got all these donations of towels and
lavender oil, and so I think that's going to become an annual event on Lanai as
well.
So, again, I appreciate your time, your patience, and I'll see you ... I think Lanai
is the next time. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Stacey. Any questions for
Stacey? Seeing none, the next testifier is Victor Bellarosa, and he'll be followed
by Mr. Hans Michel.
MR. BELLAROSA: Good evening, Committee. My name is Victor Bellarosa. I'm the
Director of Light Bringers. Light Bringers is a non-profit organization, 501 (c)3.
We're based in West Maui. Light Bringers has been serving the community for
18 years in West Maui, with money and without money. We serve the
community. We serve the senior citizens, the working poor, and we serve the
hard-core homeless persons. And that's what we've been doing, and I'm here to
ask for the funding for us so we continue doing our work in West Maui. I find
that--what you call--the last couple of years, we have so many people that's on
ice, that's homeless. Young people, 18, 19 years old that we deal with. We give
out free clothes, so they don't have to buy 'em. They don't have any money.
They spend all their money on ice, and it's a terrible situation in West Maui. And
they walk the streets, they blend in with the tourists. You don't know they're
homeless or not. Light Bringers, we sat down and we figured out that--what you
call--we save the community a lot of money by doing this. By giving them free
food and clothes and that they don't shoplift or go to Foodland or Safeway. But
we're stretching thin. But now we're paying rent with our new facilities that we
have. It comes in a little more expensive. We never begged for any money, but
this time, it's time that--what you call it--we're busting out by the seams. That we
need the funding. We do get funding. We have fundraisers now and then, but
dealing with the people and--what you call it?--and time and we network with the
other agencies, agents of aging, Food Bank, MEO and we network with all of
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them. But still we find that West Maui has grown with the homeless. And it's
growing bad, I'm telling you. The last time, four years ago, I was telling that the
homeless is a situation that somebody has to really deal with. Deal with the
situation because a lot of young girls. I've never seen so many girls, women,
that's on ice. It's unreal. We had about four that were in the office today.
Nineteen years old. Seventeen that's pregnant. We have no answer, you know.
And with the canned goods and whatever counseling that we give, we have only
two half-paid, half-time staff, and we're trying to work everything else. And we're
coming to you to find out to have a heart to give us help. We will do it. We're
dealing with the hard-core and that takes a lot of energy. And we hope that by
me saying this that somebody will wake up and this West Maui is going to go
down the tubes. It's going to go down the tubes. I'll take questions if anybody
wants to-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Thank you, Victor.
Does anybody have any
questions? Victor, I just have one question and that is, you still continue to do
the outreach with the feeding program as well?
MR. BELLAROSA: Yes, it's a hot meal. We work with all the hotels, the Sheraton, the
Royal Lahaina, the Westin. We still do that. The hot meals. We do it, and
The hotels are realizing that--what you call?--in the
they're coming in.
restaurants, the Hula Grill, Leinani's, and Kimo's, and all the restaurants ... C &
J's--what you call it--are still giving us food. And we met with the Royal Lahaina.
They wanted do, they're starting to do it last Thursday, and they're seeing what's
happening. And so-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, we really appreciate-MR. BELLAROSA: We're doing the best we could.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --we really appreciate everything.
MR. BELLAROSA: And God bless America.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Victor. Hans Michel is next, and I just
wanted to acknowledge--I don't see him right now--but our Budget Director did
arrive. Mr. Danny Agsalog. And so he will be coming in shortly. He'll, Hans
Michel will be followed by Elizabeth Gentile.
MR. MICHEL: Councilwomen, Councilmen, thank you for coming. My problem is Water
Department. 1973, Water Department came to my property drilling wells, got the
water, '77 it went into operation, and this is year 2004 and I still pay the property
tax for Water Department because they never do their paperwork yet. And when
I asked before, they said short of money.
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Now you guys part of the ... the Water Department is part of the whole County
Council, and I believe something should be done. The paperwork is with Kushi
for six months, and he's been sitting on that thing. I don't know what he's waiting
for, but I'd like to see this thing get done.
And my biggest problem is, they will not maintain the road. From the day one
they came, the contractor done it. I maintained the road for 17 years. '94 we
made a contract with Water Department. It got signed by the Board. It got
signed by my attorney. I spent six and a half thousand dollars, and the job never
got completed, was under contract.
And I hope you guys can speak to them and look into this matter and get it
squared away. And they will tell you that is not in our funds. Well, if that is the
case, you may have to pony up some money from your side. I don't know how
you're going to do it, but on the other hand, Water Department was always taking
advantage of me in that matter because it changed hands so often. And I don't
want to mention any name or Whatsoever, but the biggest problem also is
Lahainaluna has storm drain problem.
Pioneer Mill took care all these years. After they closed up, they find out they
have a problem. Now they have hired a private consultant to figure out how they
could fix it. The guy came see me. I told him I no like all the water in my yard
because it floods us out. But there is also a waterline from Lahainaluna Road,
between intermediate Princess Nahinahina [sic], coming in the back to the gulch,
up to the farm where I live. There is no easement for the pipeline, and the
consultant told me he don't know how to get that figured out because nobody has
the maps. And that is 30 years ago.
So I don't know exactly how, who you going hire for get all this squared away.
mentioned it many times, but they always will tell me bumbye. But I'm getting old
and I believe we should do something because I no can leave all these thing
behind for my kids.

sb

if, the Mayor told me he will put me on the front burner because I was on the
back burner all this long. But the part it is the money for road maintenance.
They don't have trucks. And if they have a truck, they will bring a load today, and
you don't see them for six months. But they never have completed the job yet.
So I'll leave it in you guys' hands, and I hope you guys make them do something
about it. Otherwise, I cannot hire attorney again, because I have the contract.
My problem is ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... So it's up to you guys. It's probably the
first time you hear the story, but this is how water works work, you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What's your phone contact? Can we have a phone contact, please?
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MR. MICHEL: It's 667-7693. You call me 6:30 in the morning or late at night. Other
than that, I'm working.
CHAIR HOKAMA: 667 ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 7693.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Hans.
MR. MICHEL: You're welcome. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And also, Hans, too, maybe what we can do is the
Budget Chair will send a transmittal. And thank you, Council Chair Kane. He
has to return to the other side. He's a little under the weather. That's not
surprising considering all the long hours we have, so, you know, I thank the other
Council members, too. And we have Elizabeth Gentile and also following
Elizabeth, we have Archie Kalepa. And our Budget Director, Mr. Danny Agsalog
did come in. So I thank you.
MS. GENTILE: My name is Elizabeth Gentile. I have a Scandinavian furniture store in
Kahului. When I came here, I applied for a business loan here at the bank.
Unfortunately, I didn't fit in to the category or the box that you should fit into to get
a business loan from the bank. I have noticed that there are several people in
my situation that have good ideas but a hard time to get started and get the
economic opportunities that you need to open a small business. I have gotten
very good help and from MEO. They have had the time to guide me and taken
time to get the information they needed from me to feel confident with supporting
me with the business loan that they could offer. I think it's very important,
especially on an island where it's very limited what you can do. It's not that you
just go somewhere else to do a business. This is where people are born and
where they live, and they have to have economic opportunities to do some of the
things that is needed here. So I hope you will continue to support MEO so they
can provide people with loans to open businesses. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Elizabeth. Are there any
questions? Seeing none, thank you. Our next testifier will be Archie Kalepa, and
he'll be followed by Zeke Kalua.
MR. KALEPA: Good evening, Council Members. I'd like to start off by saying, you
know, I watch two TV programs, and that's the History Channel and the County
Council on AKAKU. And I want to commend you for your, you're such dynamic
people in your efforts to help the people of Maui. And I want to salute you guys
for that. You guys are doing a wonderful job. Thank you very much for all you've
done for the people of Maui.

- 1R-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 24, 2004 (Lahaina)

The reason why I'm here is I think it's very important for the County Council to
help in assistance with getting the hospital here in West MauL And the reason
being is, you know, many of you were caught in traffic today, and it might have
been a fatality; it might not have been. But I hope it wasn't, and if we did have
that hospital, we'd be able to provide medical care to the people of West Maui
sooner, which would make it more effective and the outcome would be a lot
better. So whatever we need to do to pass those zoning bills, please help the
people of West MauL
The other reason why I'm here is I'm asking you to fund lieutenant positions for
the Ocean Safety Section, and clerical positions for Ocean Safety. Funding for
additional lifeguard Ocean Safety Services at Launiupoko and to help assist
Ocean Safety Capital Improvement for facilities to provide better care for Ocean
Safety personnel.
Evidence has suggested that lifeguard services benefit public safety by saving
lives, lowering drowning rates, and preventing injuries in ocean environments.
Lifeguards also indirectly provide economic and social benefits. They add to the
saving of emergency medical care and long-term hospital treatment, involving
cases of near drowning and alternatives ... (inaudible) ... emotional trauma and
social cost to family and friends. Those are some of the concerns that we have
for the people of Maui County and West MauL Thank you for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
questions for Archie?

Thank you very much, Archie.

Are there any

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kalepa, what you just asked the Committee this evening, is that
currently within the proposed budget by the Mayor?
MR. KALEPA: I'm not sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MR. KALEPA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Thank you, Archie.
Madamba will be the next testifier following Zeke.

Zeke Kalua and Melinda

MR. KALUA: Aloha, Budget Chair Hokama, Council Members, Director Agsalog. I want
to thank you all for being here in Lahaina tonight. I know that a lot of you are
away from your families right now. Special respect to Councilmember Carroll
driving all the way back to Hana, so thank you for your dedication and for being
here tonight. It really means a lot to us.
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As every budget year approaches, we know that the challenges become ever
more clear as our government grows and the cost of our budget grows and we
take a look at the economic benefits and negatives that are in and out of our
community. And while we can sit here all night and talk about the good and bad
and failing infrastructure and successful infrastructure, there's so much work that
we need to do together to make sure that things work. And that's the bottom line.
When I think about MEO and I think about all of the services that they provide,
they've got to be funded. Those guys need a bus, get 'em a bus. They need a
bike, get 'em a bike. They need two more drivers, you get 'em three more
drivers. If you look at even a small experience, such as dialysis and how it's
provided right now currently on the island, we've got seniors, adults, even
children that are on dialysis that are staying until midnight just to receive the
dialysis currently.
Take a look at the considerations around the island.
Kalaupapa, people actually relocating from their homes to do it. Now, when you
think about services like MEO, it takes our seniors out so that they can work, so
that they can play, so that they can buy food for themselves, that they can buy
clothes for themselves. Some of the decisions that you've made in the past,
especially with our Senior Center, thank you very much, because that takes away
ten percent of the use from MEO for them going over to Kaunoa and to other
places for activities. And, you know what, the more money put in MEO is going
to be that much more, it's going to benefit everybody.
In regards to the lifeguard situation at Launiupoko, it's a necessity. It's got to
happen. I've heard both sidles of the argument. And one side was, well, I don't
think we need 'em because currently we've got all of these people that teach surf
lessons there, and they're all certified in first aid. Well, July of this year is when
that ordinance you passed is going to take away the use for ocean rec activities
at Launiupoko. That means that resource is history. That means we're back to
the seven-minute response time for Launiupoko. That can't happen.
The seawall is probably OnE~ of the main historic parts here in Lahaina. That's
gotta get fixed. We've been fighting for 40 hours of satellite service for years
now. Since 1974, this year will be the 30th year the WMTA has been in
existence, and I don't know if the hours have gone up, but I can guarantee you
there's still 24 hours. Anybody needs to verify that, I'll go out and write down the
hours outside. Why is 24 hours inconvenient for us? It's inconvenient for us
because even at 50 percent of the 19,000 residents on this side of the island,
everybody needs to juggle their schedule just for a service that's only provided by
one person for six hours a day, four days a week. That's unacceptable. All of
this emphasis was put into the Service Center at Kahului, and they still have
three and a half-hour waits. It seems pretty clear that this year, the Mayor's
theme is personnel. And, you know what? I couldn't agree with him more.
Those nine positions for DMV are going to benefit areas like ourselves here and
in Kihei and will give us 40 hours a week. Those 13 personnel that they're
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looking to hire for the Central Service Center will take out the three-and-a-half
hour wait. Those 40 part-time positions for the Parks Department will benefit our
parks. And it's not only going to benefit MauL It benefits our sisters, Molokai and
Lanai as well. There's many needs that we could go on about and I thank you all
for your time and for considering everything.
And there's only one last point that I'd like to make. Many of you know what's
going on right now in the newspaper about the Bush, the Bush administration's
idea to possibly cut out the funding to air service providers for rural airports within
a 100 miles of a major airport. Ladies and gentlemen, this is something that
cannot happen. We have e-mailed Representative Ed Case. We met last week
with U.S. Senator Daniel Inouye. We have assurances, but assurances is like
the air we breathe. When it's blocked off, there's nothing left. I don't believe
anything until it's written and signed on paper. And we cannot allow this to
happen.
At the ending of the Cayetano administration, he was looking at closing those five
airports, and the only thing that kept them open was that Federal funding. If that
is gone, there's no telling how long it's going to be before that funding is gone.
And those airports will be closed. Kapalua may not be a number one air service
provider, but let me put it to you this way, if the State had to choose keeping
Kapalua open versus a $611,000 air ambulance allocation, I can guarantee you
it's not going to go the air ambulance route. Currently how it is, we don't even
have emergency transponder lights so a fixed-wing couldn't even land here in
Kapalua after 6:30 at night anyway. So we're not looking at, we're not looking at
win-win-win solutions. We're looking at, you are our first, last, and only line of
defense. Please help us out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Zeke. Are there any questions
of Zeke? Thanks. Thanks for all your testimony. Melinda Madamba and she will
be followed by Mr. Joseph Pluta.
MS. MADAMBA: Good evening. I'm Melinda Madamba. I'm on the Fire and Public
Safety Commission, and it's nice to see so many of you again tonight after our
rock-n-roll experience on Molokai on Monday. If I'm looking a little green tonight,
it's because, well, this is not my favorite place to be, testifying in front of a budget
commission. So bear with me.
You probably heard from a number of my colleagues on the Commission this
morning and from the Fire Department as well for their budget request. I would
like to reiterate those requests. While you were on Molokai, I hope you had an
opportunity to take a look at the Kaunakakai station. They had several
photographs on the wall of the water standing in the apparatus bay, and the
cracks in the wall due to the water that flows through there, unfortunately, on a
somewhat regular basis.
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And so we'd like to ask for the, the funding for the relocation of the Kaunakakai
Fire Station. The other funding request, of course, are the expansion request for
the Fire Fighter III positions on the island of Lanai for their new tanker truck,
which should be arriving there shortly, and also a Clerk-Typist.
We'd also like to request a funding for the implementation of the Department's
reorganization plan. This is coming from the Strategic Plan, which was designed
two years ago, I believe, and funded by the County Council, and so the first step
in implementing the Strategic Plan for the Fire Department. If we can't get
through this first step, we can't get to the next step and then we've wasted tens
of thousands of dollars on the Strategic Plan that we aren't doing anything with.
So we'd really hope that you would be able to fund the first steps in following the
Strategic Plan for the Fire Department.
And then, of course, the Capital Improvements Program. Again, the Kaunakakai
Station relocation, plus the other funds that are needed to make improvements to
the stations. Our Lahaina Station here is in need of some serious upgrading. I
noticed one of the things that was in was for the communications system within
the fire station. Currently, right now the Captain must leave his door open at
night in order to hear the radio calls that come in in the middle of the night
because there's nothing in his quarters that he can be able to hear those things.
So, again, we hope that you will carefully look at the budget that the Fire
Department has presented to you, and approve all of the things that they have
requested. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Melinda. Are there any
questions of Melinda? Thank you very much. Joe Pluta. And he will be followed
by our last testifier, Juan Hernandez.
MR. PLUTA: For the last testifier, I'll make it short. Thank you. I wanted to just
reiterate the thanks for coming here and going through the traffic, and I know you
got a big job ahead of you and I'll make this short.
In December we passed out a newsletter. We sent you all one in the mail.
hope you got it. And I'm just going to give your staff another one because you
might have ... all the papers you get. It could be stuck under a mountain
somewhere, so to remind you again, it's a wish list. And I'll give it to your staff
member.
As you know that I guess the isolation and infrastructure issues are the top of
everybody's thing. I sympathize with Molokai and Lanai. The isolation, they
know all about isolation over there on Molokai and Lanai and what they're
requesting for urgent fire and for police protection. I hope that they will receive
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full considerations. Remote areas, Hana as well. And West Maui, believe it or
not, with all the money we generate, we're still on a dead-end cul-de-sac street.
And so, you know, I, small example today coming here, but for us that live here,
it's all the time, all the time, all the time. And it just scares us because you want
to put more money where the best benefit's going to be and somehow this
assurance that West Maui is always going to be sending this pot of dough to the
County is not guaranteed. You gotta put and reinvest in the infrastructure to
make sure that you're nurturing that investment so it'll continue. Because there's
no guarantee that it won't or will continue.
So health and safety, I think, you know, first and foremost. Lanai and Molokai
and don't forget West Maui when it comes to the health and safety, roads and
isolation.
Thanks very much for what you do with the seniors, MEO. Anyway we can, you
can help eliminate the possibility of extra cars and vehicles on the roads helps
everybody and to help services getting the seniors around, as well as getting to
the satellites ... increasing satellite city hall services, keeps cars here in West
Maui instead of on the road to the other side. Anything that you can do here to
allow people not to have to drive to the other side keeps cars off the roads, and,
therefore, reduces the chance for accidents. And thanks for the great job you're
doing. God bless you all.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Joe. Any questions? Seeing
none, our last testifier will be Mr. Juan Hernandez, and if there's anyone else that
wishes to testify, just please come over and sign up. Thank you.
MR. HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Council Chair and Department and Council
Members. My name is Juan Hernandez. I live in Lahaina. MEO Enlace Hispano
has been so helpful to me since I came to the islands, such as providing
information. So many different ways. Also, as a references. When I first came
to the island, it was the first place to go to as Hispanic because he can help me,
they can help me on my first language. And also as a second language . . .
(inaudible) ... they can help us to learn a little bit so we can know more about
your islands, Whatever, you know, as getting information to be better citizen. And
also I'm very, very happy with Cesar because he's the one who helped me,
who's been guiding me with things that I really need as DMV, to the Council to
get so many different ideas to grow in this Country. He's been telling me how to
get a GED and things like that so my work and my people can grow here instead
of being just hidden, doing nothing. And I will thank you, Council, because if it
wasn't for you, this MEO Enlace Hispano won't be here, so, please, I will tell you
to keep supporting them. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Thank you very much, Juan. Are there any
questions? Seeing none, is there anyone else that wishes to testify who has not
testified? Well, I'm going to turn over the microphone now to Riki Hokama, and
this is an early evening for Lahaina, so let's hope that the, you know, I don't know
for sure if it was a fatality, but let's all say a little prayer tonight. So, Riki, it's all
yours.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we want to, first of all, thank all of you for being here this
evening. What you share with us is very important. I want you to know every
single person that is here is very important to us, and we also know that you
have your family and friends who are not able to be here. But, nonetheless, we
appreciate your time. We take your comments seriously. The nine of us who
represent all of you, you know, we take our jobs very seriously. I want you to
know that it is, as I've shared with them, we have many, many, many requests
this year, whether it be from Molokai, Upcountry, Lanai, Hana, South Maui, West
MauL And I wish I could tell you tonight that we have enough money for every
single request. We do not have that lUxury. So we'll be making some very hard
decisions based on what we'll feel will help everyone the best that we can. And
we ask you to continue to participate. We are happy to see all of you, and we
hope that when the opening of the West Maui Senior Center, that you would
consider inviting us. We'd love to participate with you at your facility, and that we
are just glad that we are a small part of your community that was able to help
provide you with this facility. So, thank you, Lahaina, for being here, and we look
forward to seeing you once more in the very near future.
Good
night .. .(gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: DPK, WKN)
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

7:50 p.m.
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